
2024 Preservation Awards Nominations 

May 9, 2024, 7:00 PM, Auditorium 

 

1. 90 Hillandale Road 

2. 29 North Avenue 

3. 52 Morningside Drive South 

4. 136 Riverside Avenue 

5. 15 Bradley Street 

6. 61 Clapboard Hill Road 

7. 60 Long Lots Road 

8. 67 Long Lots Road 

9. 83 Long Lots Road 

10. 100 Hillspoint Road: Excellence in Ongoing Care and Maintenance 

11. 41 Richmondville Avenue 

12. 387 Main Street – No HRI 

Packet 1: 1, 2, 3 

Packet 2: 4, 5 

Packet 3: 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 

 

In past awards, the following is a list of categories used: 

Rehabilitation 

Site Rehabilitation 

Helen Muller Preservation Award 

Adaptive Re-use 

Preservation 

Reconstruction 

Rehabilitation/Special Permit for Historic Residential Structures 

Excellence in Ongoing Care and Maintenance 

Sensitive/Appropriate Addition 

Restoration 



90 Hillandale Road  
This house was initially built in c.1896 by Edmond Smith according to research  by Bob Weingarten.  In 
December 2021 it was placed for sale and purchased by Kim Walin of 90 Hillandale LLC.  This new owner 
restored the exterior of the house to what it may have been in c.1896 and completely gutted and 
updated the interior.  The owner sold the house in July 2022 to the current owner of Majlak and John 
Vines.   

The house was a candidate for a teardown but instead was restored, both exterior and interior, and 
then resold.     

Photo of house for sale in 2021: 

 

Note the framing at the left part of the front of the house appears to be a potential one car garage entry 
from the 1930s but closed many years later.  The enter area was re-sided, as well, as other areas of 
damaged siding after purchase in 2021. 

Photo taken January 2023: 

 

 

 



  
 
 
IF 65 
 

HISTORIC RESOURCES INVENTORY—BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES 
 

 
State Historic Preservation Office, Department of Economic and Community Development 

 450 Columbus Boulevard, Suite 5 
Hartford, CT 06103 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Building Name (Common)    

 

Building Name (Historic)   Patrick O’Connor House 
 

Street Address or Location  90 Hillandale Road 

Town/City: Westport  Village:  County:  Fairfield 
 
Owner(s): 90 Hillandale LLC     Public  Private 
 
   
Vii         
 
 

 PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

Present Use   Residential 
 

Historic Use  Residential 
 

Accessibility to Public: Exterior visible from public road?  Yes    No 
 

Interior accessible?   Yes    No  If yes, explain     
 

Style of building: Vernacular Victorian   Date of Construction   c. 1885 
 
Materials (Indicate use or location when appropriate):  
 
  Clapboard  Asbestos Siding      Brick   Wood Shingle   Asphalt Siding 
 

  Fieldstone  Board & Batten   Stucco   Cobblestone   Vinyl Siding 
 

  Concrete (Type)    Cut Stone (Type ) :   Other:  
 
Structural System 
 

  Wood Frame  Post & Beam  Balloon        Load-bearing Masonry    Structural iron or steel 
 

  Other   
 
Roof (Type) 
 

  Gable  Flat  Mansard   Monitor  Sawtooth 
 

  Gambrel  Shed  Hip   Round  Other  
 
(Material) 
 
  Wood Shingle  Roll Asphalt  Tin   Slate   Asphalt Shingle 
 
  Built up  Tile  Other     

 
 
Number of Stories:  2 Approximate Dimensions   28 x 38; 22 x 10 
 
Structural Condition:    Excellent  Good   Fair   Deteriorated 
 

Exterior Condition:    Excellent  Good   Fair   Deteriorated 
 

Alterations?   Yes  No  If yes, explain: Solar panels; window sash; door hood; bluestone deck 
        rear sunroom; porch removed 
 
 FOR OFFICE USE Town #_______ Site________ UTM __________________________ 

 
 District  S  NR, Specify:   Actual  Potential 

 

 



 
 
 
         Historic Resource Inventory, p. 2 

 PROPERTY INFORMATION (CONT’D)  
 

Related outbuildings or landscape features:  
 

  Barn   Shed  Garage  Carriage House       Shop  Garden 
 

  Other landscape features or buildings:  

 
Surrounding Environment:  
 

  Open land   Woodland  Residential      Commercial         Industrial      Rural 
 

  High building density   Scattered buildings visible from site 
 

• Interrelationship of building and surroundings: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Other notable features of building or site (Interior and/or Exterior)  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Architect    Builder    
 
• Historical or Architectural Importance:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Sources:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photographer: Rachel Carley Date: 6/22 
 
View: From the north   
 
Name: Rachel Carley           Date: 6/22 
 
Organization: Preservation Consultant 
  10 Camp Dutton Road 
  Litchfield, CT 06759 
• Subsequent field evaluations 
Threats to building or site:  
 

 None known   Highways      Vandalism  Commercial   Developers      Renewal  Private 

 Deterioration   Zoning  Other     Explanation  

House stands on a level .39-acre lot at the southwest corner of Center Street; garage at the southwest corner of the lot, 
approached off Center Street. Rail and picket fences. 

A simply massed peak-roofed building oriented with its gable ends to the north and south. The north gable end, which 
serves as the façade, is notable for its deep overhanging roof eaves and has an asymmetrical profile owing to an extension 
on the house’s east side. The front door is offset to the west of two windows, where it is sheltered by a simple open-
pedimented door hood (not original) mounted on triangular brackets. A broad shed dormer breaks through the roofline on 
the east side of the building, where a three-sided window bay is located. A one-story hip-roofed wing is located at the 
southeast corner, and a one-story shed-roofed sunroom projects to the south.   

This 19th-century farmhouse is one of two O’Connor houses that long stood on Muddy Brook, one on the north side of 
Hillandale Road to the west, identified on the 1869 town map with the name J(eremiah) O’Connor, and this one catty-
corner across the road at the corner of Center Street. In 1882, Jeremiah O’Connor purchased a tract on the south side of 
Hillandale Road from the Couch family, extending from West Parish Road to Center Street. Patrick O’Connor acquired 
a two-acre parcel here east of the brook in the 1880s and erected this dwelling. As built, the house was notched in at its 
northeast corner and had a wraparound porch running along its front (north) and east elevations. The porch has been 
removed and building’s northwest corner has been filled in to provide more floor area; the long slope of the east roof 
plane, which accommodates a dormer, another significant modification, is a consequence of that alteration. The original 
format, and its vertical, gable-front orientation with deep overhanging eaves—a feature that has been preserved from 
the original design—typify late-19th century vernacular Victorian domestic building, consistent with a date of about 
1885. As of 1945 the house belonged to Helga Bergenstein and Lars Olson. The house’s interior has been recently 
gutted and renovated. 

Town of Westport Tax Assessor 
U.S Federal census records 
Maps, 1869, 1911 
Survey Map # 1967 
Joseph Adams Manuscript, Westport Mus. 

 



29 North Avenue 
This house was nominated by Dan Woog and agreed to by myself.  It is a very small antique house which  
in the past was neglected, in my opinion, having seen it as a realtor several years ago.   The new owner, 
Annette Norton, purchased the house in April 2021.  She restored the exterior appearance to what was 
probably the original house and has updated and enhanced the entire interior of the house.  Her most 
outstanding exterior restoration was a) removal of a stockade fence which blocked the view of the front 
of the house from North Avenue by replacing with a post and rail fence; b) replacing the upper front 
windows with two tandem windows as portrayed on two 1700s/1800s house on Kings Highway North 
Historic District; c). changed the window configuration of one window on each side of the front door to 
two windows on each side of front door as was done in the late 1700s.   

A list of modifications is as follows from the owner:   

-refinished the original wood floors 
-took out modern tile on floors and replaced with brick flooring 
-took out modern tile on fireplace and replaced with a salvaged mantel from a 1700's house in Lebanon, 
CT 
-Also took off the white paint someone had painted on the brick of the fireplace. 
-replaced the windows with Pella and fully insulated the house. 
-replaced rotted exterior doors with salvaged antique doors. 
-took out sheetrock on ceilings and left original beams exposed 
-repointed stone foundation 
-cleaned, repaired and stained cedar roof 
-repaired cedar clapboard siding 
-added a master bathroom 
-converted to gas heat and took away the oil tank on yard 
-repaired copper gutters and downspouts 
-kept original kitchen cabinets and added to them when we remodeled the kitchen 
-added shiplap to interior walls 
With all the modifications and preservation actions, the building footprint has remained the same.  Al 
the enhancements and preservation activities are complete. 

The age of this structure has several different dates from ca.1775 to ca.1850.  The earliest date of c.1775 
was provided by a family historian who stated that he believed the house was built ca.1775 by Daniel 
Mills and either rebuilt/remodeled ca.1820 by Hezekiah Mills.  These dates would nicely fit into the 
characteristic of the house.  The HRI states that the built date was before 1830 by Hezekiah Allen or 
maybe in 1850 by Betsey Mills, granddaughter of Hezekiah Mills.   Whichever date is correct, the house 
is at least over 150 years old and determining the exact date is not very useful for proposal of a 
Preservation Award.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 North Avenue Photos 

 

Prior to 2023 from Barn Survey – Stockade Fence on North Avenue Side and windows  
 
 

 

Photograph 1-2023: Post and Rail fence from North Avenue, tandem windows on top and  

two windows on each side of front door.   

 





































52 Morningside Drive South 
This 1873 house was purchased in August 2021 by Juliana and Jordan Bulgar and since then, 
until about December 2022, has been undergoing restoration of the exterior and 
enhancements to the interior.  The exterior restoration and preservation included repairing 
clapboard siding, repair to windows including installing new second story middle window with a 
more age appropriate window and extending the rear second story patio to the left side of the 
building.  The restoration removed a bay window on the second floor and installed 6 over 6 
double pane windows with side slats.  

There is too much interior work to describe and appeared to be a daily activity starting with the 
first floor and continuing to the attic of the main house.  Looking at the house, it is hard to 
consider that it has existed since the late 1700s and without these exterior restoration – it 
would not appear as it current is.   

 

House prior to August 2021 sales date.  

 

 

Current image of house as of 1-2023. 

 










